
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, July 7, 2025 — 2:00 P.M. 
 

The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public to attend its meetings both in-person 
at its Board Room and virtually via livestream. Please note that in the event of technical 
issues that disrupt the meeting livestream or receipt of public comments by phone or 
email, the meeting will continue, unless otherwise required by law, such as when a Director 
is attending the meeting virtually pursuant to certain provisions of the Brown Act. 
 
 

Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:   
 
Members of the public can address the Board of Directors during “Public Comments” or on specific 
agenda items, may do so as instructed below.  All comments will be subject to a limit of three (3) minutes. 
 

• Making Public Comment for In-Person Attendance: Members of the public who wish to observe or to 
address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical location. A Request to Speak 
slip must be submitted to the Board Secretary prior to start of the meeting (if possible). 

• Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for 
the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board Secretary at 
publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the Board Secretary will 
call when the board is ready to hear public comments; or 

• Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that item closes at the 
meeting, email your comments to the Board Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org and they will 
be read aloud during the public comment period; or 

• Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off or mailed in advance of 
the meeting at the District’s Administrative located at 29300 Valley Center Rd., Valley Center, CA 
92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on meeting day. 

 

These public comment procedures supersede any District public comment policies and procedures to 
the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with disabilities are required, such 
persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting by email to the Board 
Secretary at boardsecretary@vcmwd.org. 
 

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the 
District’s website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the 
link listed below “live stream” on the page.   

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made 
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s 
website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board 
Meeting Documents.  

 

ROLL CALL 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to the agenda 
(Government Code Section 54954.2). 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but within 
the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda will be received 
during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code Section 54954.3). 

mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:boardsecretary@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  2     July 7, 2025 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience. 
 
1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 16, 2025;  

2. Audit Demands; 

3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended May 31, 2025;  

4. Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance (SAS 114) Letter; and 

5. Survey of General Counsel Services Costs. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM(S) 
 
It is not necessary to notify the Board Secretary if a member of the public wishes to speak on items listed 
on the agenda as public hearings. Public hearings will begin at the time stated in the notice, or as soon 
thereafter as the matter can be heard. Opportunities for the public to address the Board will be given after 
the President opens the hearing. 

 
6. Public Hearing to Consider Approving Proposed Revisions to Water Meter Capacity Fees 

and Annexation Charges for Fiscal Year 2025-26 and Request Adoption of Ordinance No. 
2025-06 to Amend the District’s Administrative Code: 
 

A public hearing will be held to receive input on the District’s proposed revisions to Water Meter 
Capacity Fees and Annexation Charges (effective July 1, 2025). Upon conclusion of the public 
comments and discussion, adoption of said charge will be considered. 

 

a. Open Public Hearing 

b. Report by District Engineer 

c. Audience comments/questions 

d. Close Public Hearing 

e. Questions/Discussion 

f. If desired, motion to approve or deny Ordinance No. 2025-06 

 
7. Public Hearing to Consider Levying the Approved Woods Valley Ranch Water 

Reclamation Facility Sewer Service Charges (Service Areas 1 and 2) and Grinder Pump 
Maintenance Charges (Service Area 2) on the Property Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2025-26: 

 

A public hearing will be held to receive comments on collecting the Woods Valley Ranch WRF 
Service Area Sewer Service Charges and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charges on the property 
tax roll for Fiscal Year (FY) 2025-26. After receiving public comment, Board will close the Public 
Hearing, determine if there is a majority protest and consider adoption of Resolution No. 2025-17 
levying the Woods Valley Ranch Sewer Service Charges (Service Areas 1 and 2), and Grinder 
Pump Maintenance Charges (Service Area 2) on the property tax roll for FY 2025-26. 

 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  3     July 7, 2025 

Agenda Item No. 7:  Public Hearing on the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Sewer 
Service Charges Continued 

 

a.  Open Public Hearing 

b.  Report by District Engineer 

c.  Audience comments/questions  

d.  Close Public Hearing 

e.  Discussion 

f.  If desired, motion to approve Resolution No. 2025-17: 

1) Exhibit A – Sewer Service Charge – Service Area 1 
2) Exhibit B – Sewer Service Charge – Service Area 2 
3) Exhibit C – Grinder Pump Maintenance Charge – Service Area 2 

 
ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

8. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-18 Levying the Approved Woods Valley Ranch 
Water Reclamation Facility Sewer Standby Fees (Service Areas 1 & 2) on the Property 
Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2025-26: 

 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-18 approving and levying the Woods Valley Ranch Water 
Reclamation Facility Service Area Sewer Standby Fees for Service Areas 1 and 2 on the property 
tax roll for Fiscal Year 2025-26 will be considered. 

 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-18 

1) Exhibit A – Sewer Standby Fee – Service Area 1 
2) Exhibit B – Sewer Standby Fee – Service Area 2 

 
9. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-19 Approving and Levying the Annual 

Assessments for Assessment District No. 2012-1 on the Property Tax Roll for Fiscal 
Year 2024-25: 
 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-19 approving and levying the Annual Assessment for Assessment 
District No. 2012-1 on the Property Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2024-25 will be considered. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-19 

 
10. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-20 Approving and Levying Annual Special 

Taxes for Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 on the Property Tax Roll for Fiscal 
Year 2025-26: 

 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-20 approving and levying Annual Special Taxes for Community 
Facilities District No. 2020-1 on the property tax roll for Fiscal Year 2025-26 will be considered. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2025-20 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  4     July 7, 2025 

11. Reconsideration of Exhibit A – State and Federal Representation to the Mutual Services 
Agreement and Request Board Participation in the Mutual Services Ad Hoc Committee: 

 

Reconsideration of Exhibit “A” (recently renamed Exhibit “B”) to the Mutual Services Agreement 
Between FPUD, RMWD, YMWD and VCMWD – State and Federal Representation and request 
Board participation in the Mutual Services Ad Hoc Committee. 

 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. If desired, approve the new Exhibit “B” (State and Federal Representation) to the “Mutual 

Services Agreement Between FPUD, RMWD, YMWD, and VCMWD 
e. If desired, identify up to 2 Board Members to participate in the Mutual Services Ad Hoc Committee 

 
INFORMATION / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 

 

12. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary: 
 

A report on the SDCWA’s Board of Directors’ Meeting of June 26, 2025 will be provided. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
13. General Information: 
 

General Information items will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTING* 
 

* Directors must provide brief reports on meetings/events attended in the performance of their official duties 
for which compensation or reimbursement is provided.   Authority: Government Code Section 53232.3. 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider litigation, 
personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege. 
Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed session (per 
Government Code § 54956.9). 

 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  5     July 7, 2025 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to the 
public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as provided 
by Government Code Section 54954.2. Any written materials provided to a majority of the Board of 
Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be available for 
public inspection on the District’s website. The agenda is available for public review on the District’s 
website, http://www.vcmwd.org.  
 

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Kirsten Peraino, Board 
Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, this agenda will be 
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 
202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the 
Board Secretary at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible. 
 

 
 

— End of Agenda — 

http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org


 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, June 16, 2025 — 2:00 P.M. 

  
The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to order 
by President Ferro at 2:00 PM. In the Board Room at 29300 Valley Center Rd.; Valley Center, 
CA 92082, and livestreamed on the District’s website at www.vcmwd.org.  

 
ROLL CALL 
 

Board Members Present: Directors Ferro, Holtz, Smith, and Stehly. 
 

Board Members Absent: Director Ness. 
 

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, District Engineer Grabbe, Director of Finance and 
Administration Pugh, Director of IT Pilve, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, Environmental 
and Regulatory Compliance Manager/Deputy Director of Operations Rutherford, Manager of 
Accounting/Deputy Director of Finance and Administration Velasquez; Senior IT Specialist Day, 
Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Peraino, and General Counsel David LLoyd present in-person. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
 

President Ferro established for the record the process by which public comments are received by 
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience. 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 2, 2025; and 

2. Audit Demands for Check Nos. 171700 – 171770 from May 24 – June 6, 2025 and Wire 
Disbursements for the Month Ended May 31, 2025; 

3. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ended April 30, 2025; and 

4. Approval of Resolution No. 2025-16 Supporting the Nomination of Carol Lee Gonzales-
Brady, Rancho California Water District, for the Office of ACWA Vice President. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Holtz; and carried with four (4) affirmative votes, 
the previously listed consent calendar items were approved. 

 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM(S) 
 

5. Public Hearing to Review Status of Vacant Positions as Required by Assembly Bill 2561: 
 

A public hearing to receive written and oral input on the status of vacant positions as required 
by AB 2561, was opened by President Ferro at 2:04 PM.   Effective January 1, 2025 – AB 2561 
amends the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA) by adding Government Code § 3502.3.  AB 

http://www.vcmwd.org/


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

2   June 16, 2025 

2561 was introduced to address the issue of job vacancies in local government, which 
adversely affects the delivery of public services and employee workload, stated Human 
Resources Analyst Stephanie Lackerdas. As part of the bill, public agencies are required to 
provide a report on recruitment and retention efforts during a public hearing each year before 
their governing bodies. 
 

Should the vacancy rate within a bargaining unit reach 20% of the total authorized full-time 
positions, AB 2561 sets forth additional information that the District will provide upon the 
request of the employee organization representing that bargaining unit. Including internal 
“domino effect” vacancies, for FY 2024-25, the District’s vacancy rate was 0% – 2.73%, falling 
well below the 20% threshold.  In regards to retention, the current average years of service for 
District employees is 11.32 years.  Ms. Lackerdas said that 42% of full-time employees have 
served more than 10 years. 
 

It was noted that no written comments were received, nor were there any oral remarks made 
following the opportunity for public input. The public hearing was closed at 2:15 PM. 
 

Action: The Board received and filed the report, in compliance with AB 2561, for FY 2024-25. 

 
ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

6. Implementation Schedule for the Proposed SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge for 
the FY 2025-26 Budget:   
 

Manager of Accounting/Deputy Director of Finance and Administration Vanessa Velasquez 
provided the Board with an opportunity for continued consideration of implementing an SDCWA 
Fixed Transportation Charge.  At the regular meeting of May 19, 2025, the Board was presented 
information for consideration in regards to implementing a SDCWA Fixed Transportation Charge 
to the water bill. 
 

Options for a 1, 2, and 3-year phased in implementation period for the SDCWA Fixed Transportation 
Charge were presented, as follows: 
 

 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

3   June 16, 2025 

 
 
Action: The Board directed staff to incorporate into the FY 2025-26 annual budget, the SDCWA 

Fixed Transportation Charge, incrementally, and phase in over a 3-year period. 

 
7. Approval of Mutual Services Agreement Exhibit A – State and Federal Representation: 

 

At the regular meeting of February 18, 2025, the Board authorized the General Manager to 
execute the Mutual Services Agreement (”Agreement”) on behalf of the Valley Center Municipal 
Water District, subject to review by District General Counsel. This agreement was executed on 
March 5, 2025, between Fallbrook Public Utility District (FPUD), Rainbow Municipal Water 
District (RMWD), Yuima Municipal Water District (YMWD), and Valley Center Municipal Water 
District (VCMWD). 
 

As an outgrowth of the Agreement, the four agencies sought proposals for joint State and 
Federal representation services as described in Exhibit “A”. The only proposals submitted came 
from Fernandez, Jensen, and Kimmelshue for State Representation and the RBW Group for 
Federal Representation. As part of the proposals, FJK requested a fee of $10,000 per month, 
and RBW, $15,000 per month, for total cost of $300,000 per year. This total will be allocated 
among four agencies at $75,000 per year, per agency.  General Manager Arant noted that 
VCMWD is the first of the four agencies to vote on approval of Exhibit A to the Agreement.   
Staff recommended the Board approve Exhibit “A” to the Mutual Services Agreement Between 
FPUD, RMWD, YMWD, and VCMWD, contingent upon full participation from the remaining 
three agencies (as outlined in the Board Memo). 
 

Action: Upon motion by Stehly, seconded by Smith; and carried with four (4) affirmative votes, 
motion to approve Exhibit A was approved. 

 
INFORMATION ITEM / POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

8. Energy Program Overview: 
 

A preview of the District’s Energy Program was presented by Environmental and Regulatory 
Compliance Manager/Deputy Director of Operations Roy Rutherford.  The District's Energy 
Program aims to efficiently use existing energy resources and explore new ways to reduce 
consumption and costs. It focuses on meeting system demand, maintaining water quality, and 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

4   June 16, 2025 

complying with regulations. The program is divided into five energy-related segments that have 
a direct impact on the District's energy usage and overall expenses:  
 

1. SDG&E Rate Selection: This process involves selecting cost-effective electricity rate plans 
by analyzing historical and projected consumption data to optimize delivery and generation 
charges. Staff assesses these factors to choose the best combination of delivery and 
electricity schedules for a specific meter. 

2. Energy Management: The Energy Program integrates best practices to optimize energy use 
in water and wastewater operations, focusing on minimizing high-cost energy usage and 
demand charges, selecting the most efficient pumps for flow demands, and regularly 
assessing wastewater blower speeds and runtimes to align with process needs. 

3. Pump Efficiency Testing and Maintenance: Staff conducts annual electric motor and pump 
efficiency testing at the District's pump stations. Based on efficiency test results, staff replaces 
or refurbishes underperforming pumps and motors to optimize facility efficiency.. The 
Operations staff also incorporates the pumping efficiency test data into their pump selection 
process and pumping strategies. 

4. Development of New Energy Sources: SDG&E currently provides approximately 65% of the 
total electricity consumed by the District, the remainder is supplied by the District's six solar 
generating facilities and three Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) solar facilities.   The District 
is actively pursuing alternative energy suppliers and storage solutions. This includes 
expanding solar facilities and investigating community choice aggregators to complement the 
electricity supplied by SDG&E. 

5. Regulatory Changes: Staff actively monitors and participates in water community work groups 
for the proceedings and rulemakings of the California Public Utilities Commission, California 
State Legislature, California Air Resources Board and SDG&E , regarding regulations that 
may impact District energy programs and costs.. 

 

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
9. General Information:  

 

General Manager Arant … 
 

Action:  Informational item only, no action required. 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S ITEM(S) 
 

None. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AB1234 REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

None. 

 
CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
 

None 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

5   June 16, 2025 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Smith, seconded by Stehly; motion passed with four (4) affirmative votes, 
the regular meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:31 PM. 

 
ATTEST:       ATTEST: 

 
 

 

 

____________________________    _____________________________ 

Kirsten N. Peraino, Secretary       Enrico P. Ferro, President 















VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT - SUMMARY

May 31,2025

ACTIVE DEPOSITS

Checking Accounts
Deposits with Fiscal Agents

TOTAL ACTIVE DEPOSITS

Cost Basis

$304,364.16

$304.364.16

INVESTMENTS Market Average

Value Yield Percent

Money Market Funds $21,741,155.17 4.29% 52.813% $21,714,634.46

CAMP Term $5,218,143.90 3.96% 12.622% $5,189,430.00

U.S. Treasury Notes 975,819.11 4.27% 2.367% 973,195.85

Federal Agencies Securities 10,991,471.13 4.29% 26.753% 10,999,827.35

Certificates of Deposit, insured 2.258.924.51 4.79% 5.445% 2.238.702.99

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $41,185,513.82 4.28% 100.000% $41,115,790.65

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

TOTAL ALL FUNDS (PRIOR MONTH - APRIL 2025)

$41.420.154.81

$41,108,726.59

Maturity Analysis ofInvestments

Money Market Funds

Maturity within one year

Maturity later than one year

Total Investments

Weighted Average Days to Maturity
Maximum permitted single investment maturity is S years.

Percent

52.813%

19.548%

27.639%

100.000%

77

Cost Basis

$21,714,634.46

8,037,465.83

11.363.690.36

$41.115.790.65

Security

LAIF

T Bills

T Bills

Term

1 day

3 months

6 months

Yield Comparatives

Yield

4.272%

4.360%

4.300%

Security Term

12 mo. rolling T Bond 1 year
T Bonds 1 year

T Bonds 2 years

Yield

4.311%

4.090%

3.920%

Sufficient funds are available to meet tlie next six month's expenditure requirements. All investments are in compliance with the
District's adopted statement of investment policy. Market values for the Governmental / Federal Securities
and Certificates of Deposit were provided by Zions Capital Advisors.

ie^^ea by James V^Qgh,
06/25/25

Treasurer

06/25/25

eceived by Gary T. Arant, General Manager Date

Page 1



ACTIVE DEPOSITS Cost Basis
Checking Accounts:

California Bank & Trust $282,151.14
California Bank & Trust $3,500.00
California Bank & Trust $17,313.02
Petty Cash $1,400.00
Zions

$304,364.16

INVESTMENTS Face Value Purchase Maturity Market Current
or Rating Date Date Value Yield

   Money Market Funds:
Local Agency Investment Fund $7,437,902.68 4.27% $7,437,902.68
County of San Diego Investment Fund $2,687,344.46 3.80% 2,699,690.51
Zions Institutional Liquidity Management $36,464.42 4.20% 36,464.42
CAMP $11,579,443.61 4.42% 11,540,576.85

$21,741,155.17 4.29% $21,714,634.46
  CAMP Term:  

CAMP Term 5,000,000             07/17/24 04/11/25 5,218,143.90 3.96% 5,189,430.00

$5,218,143.90 3.96% $5,189,430.00
  U.S. Treasury Notes:  

U S Treasury Bills 4.210% 785,000                05/15/25 09/09/25 775,876.40 4.27% 774,129.12
U S Treasury Notes 4.250% 200,000                10/19/23 10/15/25 199,942.71 4.27% 199,066.73

$975,819.11 4.27% $973,195.85
  Federal Agencies Securities - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

Federal Home Loan Banks 0.80% 250,000 07/21/21 07/21/25 248,791.85 0.80% $250,000.00
Federal Home Ln Bnk 5.250% 1,000,000 04/12/24 04/10/29 1,005,027.52 5.25% 1,000,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 0.80% 350,000 03/16/21 03/16/26 340,470.35 0.80% 350,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.00% 125,000 06/30/21 06/30/26 120,805.57 1.00% 125,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.40% 200,000 01/14/25 07/14/26 199,755.32 4.40% 200,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Bks 4.470% 600,000 08/26/24 08/26/26 600,634.19 4.47% 600,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.430% 350,000 08/30/24 08/26/26 350,088.27 4.43% 350,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Bks Bds 4.480% 400,000 09/03/24 09/03/26 400,040.51 4.48% 400,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 1.05% 250,000 10/15/21 10/15/26 239,762.78 1.05% 250,000.00
Federal Home Ln Bk Bds 4.500% 300,000 11/13/24 11/13/26 299,559.03 4.50% 300,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 3.000% 250,000 04/04/24 02/25/27 245,792.18 3.11% 240,946.33
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.400% 600,000 03/05/25 03/05/27 599,086.37 4.40% 600,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.280% 310,000 03/25/25 03/25/27 309,408.37 4.28% 310,000.00
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 4.500% 550,000 02/03/25 01/28/28 548,237.62 4.50% 549,725.00
Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.375% 700,000 02/28/25 02/25/28 699,281.27 4.38% 700,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.620% 500,000 12/26/24 12/26/28 498,601.34 4.62% 500,000.00
Federal Farm Credit Bank 4.970% 500,000 04/12/24 03/27/29 501,092.98 4.99% 498,250.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 5.00% 1,000,000 07/09/24 07/09/29 1,003,072.55 5.00% 1,000,000.00
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.700% 1,000,000 07/30/24 07/30/29 1,003,063.10 4.70% 1,000,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.125% 1,000,000 08/13/24 08/13/29 993,255.90 4.16% 990,906.02
Federal Home Loan Banks 4.930% 500,000 02/25/25 02/25/30 501,120.55 4.93% 500,000.00
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 285,000 04/28/25 04/11/30 284,523.51 5.00% 285,000.00

$10,991,471.13 4.29% $10,999,827.35
  Certificates of Deposit - CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 

USAA Federal Savings Bank 5.300% 250,000                10/06/23 09/26/25 250,965.93 5.30% 249,937.52
Citibank NA 5.300% 250,000                09/29/23 09/29/25 250,620.98 5.30% 249,934.48
Eastern Svgs Bk Fsb Hunt Vy 5.250% 245,000                10/18/23 10/20/25 245,932.49 5.25% 244,967.98
Federal Svgs Bk Chicago II 4.700% 250,000                06/26/24 06/26/28 253,901.80 4.70% 250,000.00
First Fndtn Bk Irvine Ca 4.600% 250,000                05/10/24 05/10/29 253,069.83 4.60% 250,000.00
Toyota Finl Svgs Bk Hend Nv 4.600% 250,000                05/14/24 05/14/29 253,069.20 4.60% 250,000.00
Customers Bk Phoenixville Pa 4.700% 250,000                06/11/24 06/11/29 254,060.68 4.71% 249,431.16
Sallie Mae Bk Murray Utah 4.500% 250,000                07/17/24 07/17/29 252,303.60 4.51% 249,431.85
Western Alliance Bank 4.150% 245,000                03/28/25 03/27/26 245,000.00 4.15% 245,000.00

$2,258,924.51 4.79% $2,238,702.99

Average
       TOTAL  INVESTMENTS $41,185,513.82 4.277% $41,115,790.65

       TOTAL  ALL  FUNDS $41,420,154.81

May 31, 2025
TREASURER'S REPORT - DETAIL

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Page 2



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

May 31, 2025

$10
$12
$14
$16
$18
$20
$22
$24
$26
$28
$30
$32
$34
$36
$38
$40
$42
$44
$46
$48

$10
$12
$14
$16
$18
$20
$22
$24
$26
$28
$30
$32
$34
$36
$38
$40
$42
$44
$46
$48

M
a

y
 2

0
1

5

N
o

v
 2

0
1
5

M
a

y
 2

0
1

6

N
o

v
 2

0
1
6

M
a

y
 2

0
1

7

N
o

v
 2

0
1
7

M
a

y
 2

0
1

8

N
o

v
 2

0
1
8

M
a

y
 2

0
1

9

N
o

v
 2

0
1
9

M
a

y
 2

0
2

0

N
o

v
 2

0
2
0

M
a

y
 2

0
2

1

N
o

v
 2

0
2
1

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2

N
o

v
 2

0
2
2

M
a

y
 2

0
2

3

N
o

v
 2

0
2
3

M
a

y
 2

0
2

4

N
o

v
 2

0
2
4

M
a

y
 2

0
2

5

Total Investment Portfolio
in Millions

Page 3



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

44,867.00

May 31, 2025

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

M
a

y
 2

0
1

5

N
o

v
 2

0
1
5

M
a

y
 2

0
1

6

N
o

v
 2

0
1
6

M
a

y
 2

0
1

7

N
o

v
 2

0
1
7

M
a

y
 2

0
1

8

N
o

v
 2

0
1
8

M
a

y
 2

0
1

9

N
o

v
 2

0
1
9

M
a

y
 2

0
2

0

N
o

v
 2

0
2
0

M
a

y
 2

0
2

1

N
o

v
 2

0
2
1

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2

N
o

v
 2

0
2
2

M
a

y
 2

0
2

3

N
o

v
 2

0
2
3

M
a

y
 2

0
2

4

N
o

v
 2

0
2
4

M
a

y
 2

0
2

5

Investment Portfolio Composition

L.A.I.F. S.D. Co. Treasurer Money Market CDs Govt./Fed. Securities CAMP CAMP Term

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

Page 4



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

May 31, 2025

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

M
a

y
 2

0
1

5

N
o

v
 2

0
1
5

M
a

y
 2

0
1

6

N
o

v
 2

0
1
6

M
a

y
 2

0
1

7

N
o

v
 2

0
1
7

M
a

y
 2

0
1

8

N
o

v
 2

0
1
8

M
a

y
 2

0
1

9

N
o

v
 2

0
1
9

M
a

y
 2

0
2

0

N
o

v
 2

0
2
0

M
a

y
 2

0
2

1

N
o

v
 2

0
2
1

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2

N
o

v
 2

0
2
2

M
a

y
 2

0
2

3

N
o

v
 2

0
2
3

M
a

y
 2

0
2

4

N
o

v
 2

0
2
4

M
a

y
 2

0
2

5

Weighted Average Days to Maturity

Page 5



VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT - GRAPHS

44,867.00

May 31, 2025

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

M
a

y
 2

0
1

5

N
o

v
 2

0
1
5

M
a

y
 2

0
1

6

N
o

v
 2

0
1
6

M
a

y
 2

0
1

7

N
o

v
 2

0
1
7

M
a

y
 2

0
1

8

N
o

v
 2

0
1
8

M
a

y
 2

0
1

9

N
o

v
 2

0
1
9

M
a

y
 2

0
2

0

N
o

v
 2

0
2
0

M
a

y
 2

0
2

1

N
o

v
 2

0
2
1

M
a

y
 2

0
2

2

N
o

v
 2

0
2
2

M
a

y
 2

0
2

3

N
o

v
 2

0
2
3

M
a

y
 2

0
2

4

N
o

v
 2

0
2
4

M
a

y
 2

0
2

5

Yield Comparisons
in Percentages

VCMWD LAIF Int. 12-mo. rolling T-Bond

Page 6



INVESTMENTS PURCHASED

Purchase Maturity Face Expected
Date Security Date Cost Value Yield

CAMP, CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 
07/09/24 Federal home Loan Banks 5.00% 07/09/29 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 5.000%
07/17/24 Sallie Mae Bk Murray Utah 4.50% 07/17/29 249,375.00 250,000.00 4.500%
07/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.70% 07/30/29 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 4.700%
07/17/24 CAMP Term 5.16% 04/11/25 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5.160%
08/26/24 Federal Farm Credit Bks 5.460% 08/26/26 600,000.00 600,000.00 5.460%
08/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.520% 08/26/26 350,000.00 350,000.00 5.520%
08/13/24 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.125% 08/13/29 1,000,000.00 990,000.00 4.125%
08/16/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.00% 08/21/24 500,000.00 499,636.11 0.000%
09/03/24 Federal Farm Credit Bks Bds 5.500% 09/03/26 400,000.00 400,000.00 5.500%
09/24/24 Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.620% 03/17/27 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.620%
09/27/24 Federal Home Ln Bks 4.570% 03/20/26 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.570%
10/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.750% 04/28/26 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.750%
11/12/24 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 11/12/27 500,000.00 500,000.00 5.000%
11/13/24 Federal Home Ln Bk Bds 4.500% 11/13/26 300,000.00 300,000.00 4.500%
12/26/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.620% 12/26/28 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.620%
01/14/25 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.400% 07/14/26 200,000.00 200,000.00 4.400%
02/03/25 Federal Natl Mtg Assn 4.500% 01/28/28 550,000.00 549,725.00 4.500%
02/25/25 Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.930% 02/25/30 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.930%
02/28/25 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.375% 02/25/30 700,000.00 700,000.00 4.375%
03/05/25 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.400% 03/05/27 600,000.00 600,000.00 4.400%
03/25/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 4.280% 03/25/27 310,000.00 310,000.00 4.280%
03/28/25 Western Alliance Bank 4.150% 03/27/26 245,000.00 245,000.00 4.150%
04/28/25 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 04/11/30 285,000.00 285,000.00 5.000%
05/15/25 U S Treasury Bills 4.250% 09/09/25 785,000.00 774,129.12 4.210%

INVESTMENTS MATURED

Purchase Maturity Face Yield to
Date Security Date Cost Value Maturity

CAMP, CB&T, a subsidiary of Zion Bank 
04/17/24 Federal Home Ln Mtg Cp Adj 6.050% 07/17/24 500,000.00 500,000.00 6.050%
10/30/23 Federal Home Loan Bank Cons 5.600% 07/30/24 400,000.00 400,000.00 5.600%
07/29/21 Medallion Bank 0.40% 07/22/24 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.400%
08/16/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.00% 08/21/24 500,000.00 499,636.11 0.000%
08/30/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.500% 08/28/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.500%
08/28/23 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.500% 08/28/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 5.500%
08/22/23 Federal Home Loan Banks 5.450% 09/20/24 500,000.00 500,000.00 5.450%
03/24/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.50% 09/24/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.500%
09/30/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.50% 09/30/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.500%
09/03/21 Synchrony Bank 0.55% 09/03/24 125,000.00 125,000.00 0.550%
04/24/23 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.00% 10/24/24 40,000.00 40,000.00 5.000%
01/27/23 Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp 5.15% 10/28/24 480,000.00 479,850.12 5.150%
11/04/20 Federal Farm Credit Bank 0.44% 11/04/24 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.440%
05/11/22 UBS Bank 3.00% 11/12/24 120,000.00 119,999.87 3.000%
03/10/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 3.500% 12/10/24 500,000.00 499,944.71 3.500%
11/30/23 Cross Riv Bk Teaneck N J 5.500% 12/30/24 164,000.00 163,933.99 5.500%
10/30/24 Federal Home Loan Banks 4.750% 01/28/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.750%
11/12/24 Federal Hom Ln Mtg Corp 5.000% 02/12/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 5.000%
02/18/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.40% 02/18/25 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.400%
09/27/24 Federal Home Ln Bks 4.570% 02/20/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.570%
05/27/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.625% 02/27/25 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.625%
05/27/21 Federal Home Loan Banks 0.625% 02/27/25 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.625%
03/14/22 Federal Home Loan Banks 2.15% 03/14/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.150%
07/27/20 Morgan Stanley 1.500% 04/16/25 230,000.00 230,000.00 1.500%
05/08/20 HSBC Bank 1.30% 05/07/25 245,000.00 245,000.00 1.300%
09/24/24 Federal Farm Cr Bks 4.620% 05/09/25 500,000.00 500,000.00 4.620%

JULY 1, 2024 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025
TREASURER'S REPORT - TRANSACTIONS

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Page 7













Agency Name Counsel/Legal Firm

Hourly Rate 

PARTNER                      

FY 2025-26

Additional Commments

Fallbrook P.U.D. Elizabeth Hull  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        354.00 
Hourly Rates:         Partner $354  |  Associate $320  |  Paralegal $215                                                  

Special Counsel:   Partner $384  |  Associate $349  |  Paralegal $222                                

Helix W.D. Paula de Sousa  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        375.00 
Monthly Retainer $13,756  ($375/hr services outside retainer)                                               

Special Counsel:  Partner $375 | Associate $344 | Jr. Associate $302 | Other $156         

Olivenhain M.W.D. Alfred Smith    Nossaman LLP  $        357.76 Total: $334,230 (FY to date)

Padre Dam M.W.D.  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        337.00 
Hourly Rates:        Partner $337  |  Associate $302  |  Paralegal $192                                                  

Special Counsel:  Partner $395  |  Associate $354  |  Paralegal $204                               

Rainbow M.W.D. Alfred Smith    Nossaman LLP  $        355.00 
$355/hr up to 420 hours per year - $325/hr for 420+ hrs;                                                     

varied hourly rates for special counsel services      

Ramona M.W.D. McDougal Boehmer, Foley, Lyon, Mitchell & Erickson  $        200.00 varied hourly rates for special counsel services

Rincon del Diablo M.W.D. Alfred Smith    Nossaman LLP  $        388.00 

Santa Fe ID Paula de Sousa  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        372.00 
Hourly Rates:         Partner $372  |  Associate $298  |  Paralegal $201                                                  

Special Counsel:   Partner $372                               

South Bay Water                           

(formerly South Bay 

Irrigation District)

Nick Norvell  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        277.00 Hourly Rates:        Partner $277  |  Associate $251                           

Sweetwater Auth. Paula de Sousa  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        336.00 
Hourly Rates:        Partner $336  |  Associate $295  |  Paralegal $188                                                  

Total: $513,331 (FY to date)                               

Vallecitos W.D. James Gilpin & Nick Norvell  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        289.00 
Hourly Rates:        Partner $311  |  Associate $279  |  Paralegal $177                                                  

Special Counsel:  Partner $364  |  Associate $326  |  Paralegal $189                               

Valley Center M.W.D. Paula de Sousa  Best, Best, & Krieger (BBK)  $        356.00 
Hourly Rates:        Partner $356  |  Associate $321  |  Paralegal $191                                                  

Special Counsel:  Partner $394  |  Associate $356  |  Paralegal $204                               

Vista I.D. Elizabeth Mitchell, Burke, Williams & Sorrensen  $        252.00 Litigation Rates:    Partner / Associate $305  |   Paralegal $152

$326.83 Average Hourly Rate

Survey compiled by Olivenhain Municipal Water District



















































  

Ordinance No. 2025-06 Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-06 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AMENDING ADMINISTRATIVE CODE ARTICLE 160 INCREASING WATER 
METER CAPACITY CHARGES AND 

ARTICLE 220 INCREASING THE ANNEXATION CHARGE 
 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 66013 sets forth certain 
requirements for local agencies concerning the establishment of new or increases to 
capacity charges;  
 

WHEREAS, the District has previously established Water Meter Capacity 
Charges pursuant to Government Code Section 66013; 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously established procedures for calculating 

Annexation Charges;  
 

WHEREAS, the District has undertaken a review of its Water Meter Capacity 
and Annexation Charges and determined that increases to the rates of the current 
Water Meter Capacity Charges and Annexation Charge are necessary to recover the 
costs of the identified public facilities that are of proportional benefit to persons or 
property who will be charged;  
 
 WHEREAS, a Water Meter Capacity Charges and Annexation Charge technical 
memorandum dated May 21, 2025 (the “Memorandum”) has been prepared by District 
staff and describes the methodology and basis for the determination of the proposed 
Water Meter Capacity Charges Annexation Charge and by this reference is 
incorporated herein;  
 

WHEREAS, the proposed Water Meter Capacity Charges do not exceed the 
estimated reasonable cost of public facilities in existence at the time a charge is 
imposed or charges for new public facilities to be acquired or constructed in the future 
that is of proportional benefit to the person or property being charged providing the 
service for which they are proposed to be imposed; 
 

WHEREAS, the District, as lead agency, has determined that the proposed 
Water Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges are not subject to environmental 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), Public Resources 
Code Section 21000 et seq., and the State CEQA Guidelines, Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations, Section 15000 et seq.;  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Water Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges are 
not considered a “project” subject to CEQA review under State CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15378, subdivision (b)(4) because they are considered a government funding 
mechanism that does not involve any commitment to any specific project which may 
result in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment;  
 



  

Ordinance No. 2025-06 Page 2 of 3 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Water Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges are 
also statutorily exempt from CEQA review under Public Resources Code Section 
21080, subdivision (b)(8) and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15273 because the 
charges are for the purpose of obtaining funds for capital projects necessary to 
maintain service within existing service areas;  
 

WHEREAS, specific facilities necessary to maintain service within existing 
service areas are not being considered for approval but rather the Water Meter 
Capacity and Annexation Charges that would be necessary to fund such facilities; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has considered all comments received at 
the July 7, 2025 Public Hearing, prior to the adoption of this Ordinance, and the 
exemption finding reflects the Board of Directors’ independent judgment and analysis.  
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the VALLEY CENTER 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT as follows: 
 

1. The above Recitals are true and correct and are made findings and 
determinations of the Board of Directors. 

 
2. The findings and determinations contained in the Memorandum are hereby 

adopted and made findings and determinations of this Board of Directors, 
including the methodology and factual basis for determining the rates for the 
Water Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges.   
 

3. Water Meter Capacity and Annexation Charges will be used for the purpose of 
financing public facilities as specified in the Memorandum. 
 

4. In accordance with the District’s Administrative Code Article 220 “Annexation 
Procedures,” an Annexation Charge shall be charged on any parcel approved 
for annexation to the District as a part of the terms and conditions for 
annexation. 
 

5. In accordance with the District’s Administrative Code Article 160 “Water Service 
- Rules and Regulations,” a Water Meter Capacity Charge shall be imposed on: 
 

a. any parcel without a meter requesting new service; and  
b. any parcel with an existing meter requesting additional capacity. 

 

6. The Board hereby adopts the following amounts for the Water Meter Capacity 
Charges:  

 

 

Meter Size ¾-inch 1-inch 1 ½-inch 2-inch 3-inch

Current Capacity Charge $5,705 $9,509 $19,016 $30,426 $66,559

Proposed Capacity Charge $6,203 $10,339 $20,676 $33,082 $72,369

Water Meter Capacity Charge Summary



  

Ordinance No. 2025-06 Page 3 of 3 

7. The District’s Administrative Code Sections 160.4(c) and (e) shall be and are 
amended, as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto. 

8. The Board hereby adopts $1,406 per acre for the Annexation Charge. 

9. The District’s Administrative Code Article 220(e) shall be and is amended, as 
set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto. 

10. The Administrative Code changes shall become effective August 6, 2025. 

11. The District General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take all 
actions necessary to collect the authorized Annexation Charges. 

12. All ordinances, resolutions, or administrative actions by the Board of Directors, 
or parts thereof that are inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are 
hereby superseded only to the extent of such inconsistency. 

13. If any section, subsection, clause or provision in this Ordinance or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstances is for any reason held invalid, 
the validity of the remainder of this Resolution or the application of such 
provisions to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. The 
Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance 
and each section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective 
of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or 
phrases or the application thereof to any person or circumstance be held invalid. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Valley Center Municipal Water District held on the 7th day of July, 2025, by the following 
vote, to wit: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Enrico P. Ferro, President 
 
 
 
 
______________________  
Kirsten Peraino, Board Secretary 
 
 

 
 





































































































































































































 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF FORMAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 
JUNE 26, 2025 

    
1.
  

Monthly Treasurer’s Report on Investments and Cash Flow. 
The Board noted and filed the monthly Treasurer’s Report. 
 

  

2. Approve Carlsbad Municipal Water District Refund for Overpayment of Costs Related to the 
Fiscal Year 2024 Reconciled Settlement Statement for Desalinated Water Purchases. 
The Board authorized the General Manager to refund Carlsbad Municipal Water District (CMWD) 
$179,769.51 for over collected charges related to the Carlsbad Desalination Plant operations for 
fiscal year 2024. 
 

  

3.
  

Recommended Budget Reductions for Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027.  
The Board authorized recommended reductions of $122,855 to the Board of Directors 
Recommended Budget for Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027. 
 

  

4. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Prioritization Planning Funding. Option 2. 
The Board directed staff to maintain existing CIP practices and hold a special Board workshop to 
engage the Board on current practices. 
 

  

5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Manager’s Recommended Budget for Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027. 
a. The Board adopted the General Manager’s Recommended Budget for Fiscal Years 2026 

and 2027. 
b.  The Board approved adoption of Resolution No. 2025-14, a Resolution of the Board of 

Directors of the San Diego County Water Authority approving the General Manager’s 
Recommended Budget for Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, for operations and capital 
improvements and appropriating $1,897,402,674 consistent with the approved budget. 

c. The Board approved the amended Classification and Salary Schedule for Fiscal Year 2025, 
consistent with the approved increases in the approved Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) Between San Diego County Water Authority and Teamsters Local 911, to be 
publicly available and on file with the California Public Employees Retirement System. 

d. The Board approved the Classification and Salary Schedule for Fiscal Year 2026, 
consistent with the approved increases in the approved Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) Between San Diego County Water Authority and Teamsters Local 911, to be 
publicly available and on file with the California Public Employees Retirement System.  

e. Upon final year-end closing financials, directed staff to use any excess revenue or 
undesignated revenue to defeasing Water Authority’s debt or maximize the contribution 
into the Rate Stabilization Fund (down to the 1.5x coverage target).  

f. Starting July 1, 2025, the Board directed Water Authority staff to return to the Board of 
Directors quarterly to provide Quarterly Budget Monitoring Reports for action and 
discussion; and, 

  

  



 

 2 

 
 
 
 
 
6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. 
 
 
 
9. 
 
 
 
 

g. Directed the General Manager to work with the Chair and Member Agency Managers 
Work Group on a proposed Board Policy setting  the Board’s financial metrics and 
priorities for direction, including discussion of any excess or undesignated revenues 
collected, which shall be brought to the Board for consideration at the adoption of the 
LRFP. 

 
Adopt the Water Authority’s Rates and Charges for Calendar Year (CY) 2026. 
Option 3 – Utilize Future Savings and Defer FY26 New Debt Issuance for Approximate 
8.3%Effective CY26 Rate Increase:  
a. The Board adopted Ordinance No. 2025-01 an ordinance of the Board of Directors of the 

San Diego County Water Authority setting rates and charges for the delivery and supply of 
water, use of facilities, and provision of services. (Attachment 3)  

b. The Board adopted Resolution No. 2025-15 a resolution of the Board of Directors of 
the San Diego County Water Authority continuing the Standby Availability Charge. 

c.  The Board adopted Ordinance No. 2025-02 an ordinance of the Board of Directors of the 
San Diego County Water Authority amending and restating the System Capacity and Water 
Treatment Capacity Charges imposed by the Water Authority pursuant to Section 5.9 of the 
County Water Authority Act.  

d.  The Board adopted Ordinance No. 2025-03 an ordinance of the Board of Directors of the 
San Diego County Water Authority amending and restating the  Permanent Special 
Agricultural Water Rate Program. 

e.  The Board directed staff to explore future Permanent Special Agriculture Water Rate 
Program funding alternatives for implementation no sooner than January 1, 2027 (CY 
2027).  

f.  The Board directed staff to update the adopted Fiscal Year 2026 and 2027 budget to reflect 
the Option 3 rates and charges.  

g.  Found the actions exempt from CEQA pursuant to Public Resources Code § 21080(b)(8) 
and authorized the General Manager to file a notice of exemption. 

  
Purchase of Water Authority Business Insurance for Fiscal Year 2026. 
The Board authorized the General Manager to purchase$41 million in liability insurance for fiscal 
year 2026 from CalMutuals JPRIMA in the amount of $734,000, property insurance for fiscal year 
2026 from Swiss Reinsurance Company in the amount of $306,488, and workers’ compensation 
insurance from CalMutuals JPRIMA in the amount of $460,206, for a total amount of $1,500,694. 
Property insurance deductible will increase from $50,000 to $75,000 per occurrence. 
 
Adopt position on Assembly Bill 523. 
The Board adopted a position of Support on AB 523 (Irwin), Metropolitan Water District 
agencies: proxy vote authorizations.    
 
Amendment to the cost-sharing agreement for Colorado River Board of California funding. 
The Board authorized the General Manager to execute an amendment to the joint powers 
agreement to extend the existing proportional funding shares of the six member agencies of the 
Colorado River Board of California (CRB) for one year (from July 1, 2025, to June 30, 2026).  
 



 

 3 

10. 
 
11.
  

The Board approved the minutes of the Formal Board of Directors’ meeting of May 22, 2025. 
 
Legal Services Agreement with Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP.   
The Board authorized the General Counsel to execute a Legal Services Agreement with 
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP for a period of two years relating to QSA and Colorado 
River water use and delivery issues for a not-to-exceed amount of $594,500. 

 
 

 
 

  

     
 
 
 
 
 

   

    
   
 


	07-07-2025 AGENDA
	1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Monday, June 16, 2025
	2. Audit Demands
	3. Treasurer's Report.pdf
	DETAIL
	GRAPHS (1)
	GRAPHS (2)
	GRAPHS (3)
	GRAPHS (4)
	TRANSACTIONS

	4. Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance (SAS 114) Letter
	5. Survey of General Counsel Services Costs
	6. Public Hearing to Consider Approving Proposed Revisions to Water Meter Capacity Feesand Annexation Charges for FY 2025-26 and Request Adoption of Ordinance No.2025-06 to Amend the District’s Administrative Code
	7. Public Hearing to Consider Levying the Approved Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Sewer Service Charges (Service Areas 1 and 2) and Grinder Pump Maintenance Charges (Service Area 2) on the Property Tax Roll for Fiscal Year 2025-26
	8. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-18 Levying the Approved Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility Sewer Standby Fees (Service Areas 1 & 2) on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2025-26
	9. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-19 Approving and Levying the Annual Assessments for Assessment District No. 2012-1 on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2024-25
	10. Request to Adopt Resolution No. 2025-20 Approving and Levying Annual Special Taxes for Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 on the Property Tax Roll for FY 2025-26
	11. Reconsideration of Exhibit A – State and Federal Representation to the Mutual Services Agreement and Request Board Participation in the Mutual Services Ad Hoc Committee
	12. San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Board Meeting Summary



